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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

-The East Feliciana Parish Courthouse is one of the oldest buildings 
in the state still used for its original purpose.X It was built to take 
the place of a frame Courthouse built in 1826 and burned in early 1839 by 
an arsonist, and on the Public Square which was donated by James Holmes 
and Susan Coates Bostwick (wife of John), who had purchased the land 
where Clinton is located from Lewis Yarborough and thereby become the 
proprietors and developers of Clinton. It was built by a lawyer, 
Lafayette Saunders, who came here from Gallatin, Tennessee, who was a 
member of the Police Jury when he made his bid to build the building, 
and was for some years the Judge who dispensed justice from the Judge's 
Bench in his "own" Courtroom.

It was occupied by Union troops during the War Between the States. 
Its old records are replete with slave sales and railroad and steam­ 
boat activities, (The Clinton and Port Hudson Railroad begun c. 1832 
is still being used.) Land sales, franchises, mills to grind corn, 
cotton gins, sugar mills, sawmills, and many other thing's fill the pages 
of its thick record books. Re-recorded records, the Spanish Records 
Translations, and the pages Sf fGalei-rand Sel-ton's arid Duff "Green's 
American State Papers are also located in thie building. The structure 
is still used as the parish courthouse. : ; :.; ^

The perfection-t>f its architecture is such that it is5 ' considered 
a work of art, with its beautifully planned mass, its great Doric columns 
and its balanced door and windows. It; is often a subject of study by 
students of architecture.
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7. Description (cont'd)

trower room were to be laid with planks one and one half inches thick; floors 
of the Courtroom and the other two above were to be of oak, double, and 
filled in with mortar. The staircase was to land so as to leave an eight 
foot span in the center, the opening to be railed. The only walls in the 
building which are not of brick are the side walls of the two small second 
floor rooms which are of plastered frame. Only minor changes have been 
made inside the Courthouse as well as on the outside, so essentially this 
building is as it was, even to three coats of smooth plaster on the inside 
walls. Even the bell which was ordered to be propertly hung and not to cost 
more than $50.00 is still rung to announce sessions of the Court.

The Courthouse was designed by J. S. Savage and built by 
Lafayette Saunders^ who resigned as a member of the East Feliciana Parish 
Pt^lt^"Jury^%hln tiis bid won the contract at $23,000. The building was 
accepted as completed 7 September 1840 even though the roof leaked due 
to the above noted changes in roof """covering and addition of dome. That 
leak persisted for 124 years and finally stopped after the restoration had 
been done.

The fenders for the fireplaces are gone, but some of the origina 
chairs remain and the old pegged table for the lawyers still sits in front 
of the Judge's Bench, still uniquely horseshoe-shaped even though it now 
has a top of
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

The Courthouse is hardly changed at all, the changes being note 
in the following description of the original. ^ The building is of brick, 
two-story, 55' x 55', ceilings 18', with twelve windows below and seventeen 
above. Windows below were to have batten shutters covered with sheet iron.N 
They now have plain batten shutters on the original strap hinges. Windows 
above were to have Venetian shutters, now they have none. All windows were 
and are six over six, but the old panes were taken out by the contractor 
who did the restoration in 1964 and given to the architect. Windows were 
to be ommitre^nTrom tfnlTlBftel4 "floor west end because of the stairway. 
There were to be four chimneys, two on the east and two on the wast 
partition walls, so as to have four fireplaces,, downstairs., two in the 
courtroom and one each in each jury room (these were originally intended 
for Petit and Grand Juries). The stacks remain as they were, but all 
fireplace openings except one are sealed and used for heating and air- 
conditioning ducts. ^The roof was first planned to £e four-sided, .covered 
with zinc, surmounted at the apex by a handsome iron railing ten feet 
square and three feet tall, but this was changed during the construction 
to a four-sided roof covered with leaded slate and surmounted by a dome 
atop the square apex.^ Walls of the first floor,(the foundation) were to be 
three feet thick, walls of first to second floor to be 17" thick, from 
second to third to be 13" thick and all partition walls to be 13" thick. 
Doors and windows were to be finished with plain pilasters, and the large 
folding doors were to have square headlights. All is as it was planned 
except the architect changed the headlight over the west door to a fanlight 
Steps were to be of sound oak logs put neatly together (original plans 
called for granite steps, but they were changed to oak). There were to 
be two balconies at. the folding doors in either end of the Courtroom to 
project three feet with iron railings. The oak steps were removed i 
1964 because of termite damage and concrete ones substituted, v.The 
to be supported by Doric columns and the cornice to be of heart of 
cypress without sap or other defects." The outside walls and the J 
were to be plastered rough cast. All doors to the outside were t 
folding doors-, and were the ones leading into--the Courtroom. The 
which surrounds the building had a brick floor laid In a herringbo 
pattern. The old bricks were taken up and replaced with modern br 
and the tops of the great slabs of slate which line the outer edges 
the porch were covered with concrete. The old brick walks in front and 
back still remain.

Inside there were four rooms on the first floor; the two on 
the north have been long since combined into one large room. On the second 
floor is a Courtroom which is 52' x 38', with two rooms of 12' x 20' and a 
stair landing ten feet wide. The great west hall runs the full length of 
the west side, is brick floored (now new brick) and contains the double 
stairway going up from the folding doors to the Courtroom. The stairsteps 
were to be six feet wide of plank two and one half inches thisk. Joists 
of the first and second floors were to be not more than 18" apart, and the 
same for joists on the second floor; those over the Courtroom were to be 
supported by two girders across the breadth of the Courthouse so the joists

would not be taver 18* long. All fastenings were to be of the best brass 
mounted, the windows to have single box frames and all sash to be hung with 
weights and pulleys. Door frames were to conform to plans; floors of the
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